
  GANNETT FLEMING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

  100 Crossways Park West  

  Suite 300 

  Woodbury, NY 11797 

   

  Office:  (516) 364-4140 

  Fax:  (516) 921-1565 

  Internet:  www.gannettfleming.com 

 

Continued . . . 

May 8, 2012 

File # 47743 

 

Mr. Kevin Sarnowicz 

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) 

Division of Environmental Remediation 

Remedial Bureau B, 12
th

 Floor 

625 Broadway 

Albany, New York 12233-7016 

 

Subject: Revised Bulkhead Environmental Investigation Work Plan 

Frito-Lay - 202-218 Morgan Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 

BCP Site #C224133 

 

Dear Mr. Sarnowicz: 

 

On behalf of the Frito-Lay, Gannett Fleming Engineers, P.C. (GF) is submitting to the New York 

State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) a Revised Bulkhead 

Environmental Investigation (EI) Work Plan (WP) for 202-218 Morgan Avenue (Site) located in 

Brooklyn, New York for your review and acceptance. The Revised Bulkhead EI WP was 

prepared in response to NYSDEC’s comment letters dated April 12, April 16, and May 3, 2012. 

 

In accordance with NYSDEC’s Conditional Approval letter dated December 27, 2011, GF has 

prepared this Bulkhead EI WP to characterize the surface and subsurface soil beyond the existing 

fence line to the existing bulkhead along the eastern side of the English Kills and on the southern 

side of the English Kills basin. The soil borings will be installed and soil samples will be 

collected to characterize potential surface and subsurface soil impacts in these areas of the Site. 

 

Frito-Lay intends to repair approximately 220 feet along the eastern portion of the bulkhead and 

an additional 40 feet from the southeastern corner along the southern portion of the bulkhead. 

The bulkhead construction drawings have not been finalized, and are subject to Region 2 Bureau 

of Marine Resources review and approval, and are not provided in this work plan. 

 

In order to characterize the soils that may require management during bulkhead repair, GF 

generally proposed to extend the existing 50’ x 50’ sampling grid into the area between the fence 

line and the bulkhead to maintain consistency with the sampling approach that was established 

and approved by NYSDEC for the RI sampling program. GF has not proposed soil boring 

locations for 50’ x 50’ sampling grid areas that have an existing sample location, but has 
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proposed soil boring locations in areas where no data has been collected from an a specific 50’ x 

50’ sampling grid area or in areas adjacent to “hot spot” areas scheduled for remedial excavation 

along the southern bulkhead line and the southeastern corner of the site. On April 16, 2012, 

NYSDEC requested that additional sample be collected from Cells F5 and H5 which were added 

to the revised Bulkhead EI WP (See Figure 1). Sediment and erosion control has been proposed 

for each boring location consistent with NYSDEC’s Conditional Approval letter dated December 

27, 2011 and with Paulus, Sokolowski, and Sator (PS&S) Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 

(Silt Fence Detail) prepared for the site, dated June 25, 2010 (Sheet C04). 

 

GF proposes to use the endpoint sample results that will be collected from the southern sides of 

Cells B5, C5 and D5 to characterize the soils between the fence line and bulkhead to the south of 

these respective cells. All of the southern endpoint samples from B5, C5, and D5 will be 

collected outside the shoring which will likely be just south of the chain link fence. GF will also 

install a soil boring east of Cell J1 (SB-58), and south of Cells F5 (SB-59) and H5 (SB-60) to 

characterize the soils between the fence line and bulkhead in this portion of the Site. 

 

In addition, the endpoint sample results collected on the east side of cell H3D has not provided 

PCB results less than 25 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) up to the eastern fence line which is 

approximately 65 feet east of the eastern sidewall of H3D. GF proposes to collect a sample from 

the shallow depth interval (12-14 inches) on the eastern side of the fence line for PCB, arsenic, 

lead, and mercury analysis. GF does not intend to collect the deeper depth interval (60-62 inches) 

since the initial sidewall endpoint sample result was less than 10 mg/kg and the concrete slab on 

the east side of cell H3D is located approximately 14 inches below grade and extends to the 

fence line. 

 

Endpoint samples B5-S1, B5-S2, C5-S1, C5-S2, D5-S1, and D5-S2 will be collected for PCB, 

arsenic, lead, and mercury analyses. The endpoint sample for H3D (H3D-E1-7) will be collected 

for PCB, arsenic, lead, and mercury analysis on the eastern side of the fence line. The proposed 

soil boring east of cell J1 (SB-58) and south of Cells F5 (SB-59) and H5 (SB-60) will also be 

collected for PCB, arsenic, lead, and mercury analyses (See Table 1). 

 

For SB-58, SB-59, and SB-60, the boring will be advanced using a hand auger to the 

approximate sample collection depth. Due to the potential location of bulkhead tie-backs, boring 

advancement will be terminated at the first sign of refusal to avoid damaging subsurface 

supporting anchors, and will be relocated, if necessary. 
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The first soil sample will be collected from 0 to 2 ft-bgs and the second soil sample will be 

collected from 2 to 4 ft-bgs to just above the water table. Soil samples will be collected from the 

0 to 2 ft-bgs and from 2 to 4 ft-bgs depth intervals using stainless steel spilt spoons. 

 

GF personnel will document soil lithology and field screen soil vapor headspace in sealable 

plastic bags using a PID calibrated to a 100 parts per million (ppm) isobutylene standard. Sample 

depths may be altered due to field limitations and the actual depth of groundwater at the time of 

sampling. Soil samples will placed into laboratory-supplied glassware, immediately stored in an 

ice-filled cooler, and shipped with chain-of-custody documentation to Con-Test of East 

Longmeadow, Massachusetts, a NYSDOH-certified laboratory. Soil samples will be analyzed for 

arsenic, lead, and mercury by EPA Method 6010B/7471A for the appropriate 

excavation/remediation cells and PCBs by EPA Method 8082 for all cells in conformance with 

Category B protocol (Table 1-1). The data package provided by the laboratory will meet the 

specifications of a full Analytical Services Protocol (ASP) Category B deliverable package. The 

methods and data packages provided by the laboratory will be consistent with the specifications 

of the most current version of the ASP. A Data Usability Summary Report (DUSR) will be 

prepared for inclusion in the Final Engineering Report (FER). 

 

All work will be performed in accordance with NYSDEC Brownfield Cleanup Program (BCP), 

DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation, the signed Brownfield 

Cleanup Agreement (BCA) with Frito-Lay dated August 21, 2009, and the NYSDEC approved 

RI Work Plan dated September 2009. Project-specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) and 

Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) was prepared and submitted as part of the approved RI 

Work Plan. The HASP and QAPP will be followed to provide safe procedures, practices, and 

quality assurance criteria for GF employees and their subcontractor personnel engaged in 

performing RI activities at the Site.  

 

The HASP and QAPP were included in Appendix A and in Section 5.0, respectively, in the 

September 2009 RI Work Plan. A Community Air Monitoring Program (CAMP) was prepared 

as part of the approved RI Work Plan and will be followed to provide air quality monitoring 

procedures to protect the downwind community (i.e., off-site receptors, including residents and 

off-site outside workers) from potential airborne contaminant releases that may be a direct result 

of the sampling activities. 
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Should you have any questions or comments concerning the Bulkhead EI Sampling Plan, please 

do not hesitate to contact me at (908) 755-0040, ext. 3033. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

GANNETT FLEMING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

 

 

Michael J. Brady, P.E. 

Senior Environmental Engineer 

 

(Attachments) 

cc: J. Quinn jaquinn@gw.dec.state.ny.us 

C. Robinson cedric.g.robinson@pepsico.com 

K. Massa keith.d.massa@pepsico.com 

J. Haesler John.Haesler@haskell.com 

J. Floren Jathan.Floren@haskell.com 

D. Palmer Delano.Palmer@haskell.com 

M. Johnson mjohnson@gfnet.com 

V. Frisina vfrisina@gfnet.com 



TABLE 1

FRITO-LAY

202-218 MORGAN AVENUE, BROOKLYN, NEW YORK

NYSDEC #C224133

BULKHEAD ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION SAMPLING PROGRAM

SAMPLING DESIGNATION AND LABORATORY SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS

PCBs Arsenic Lead Mercury

B5-S1 (12-14) 12 to 14 inches x x x x
B5-S2 (84-86) 84-86 inches x x x x
C5-S1 (12-14) 12 to 14 inches x x x x
C5-S2 (60-62) 60-62 inches x x x x
D5-S1 (12-14) 12 to 14 inches x x x x
D5-S2 (54-56) 54-56 inches x x x x

H3D-E1-7 H3D-E1-7 (12-14) 12 to 14 inches x x x x
SB-58 (0-2) 0 to 2 feet x x x x
SB-58 (2-4) 2 to 4 feet x x x x
SB-59 (0-2) 0 to 2 feet x x x x
SB-59 (2-4) 2 to 4 feet x x x x
SB-60 (0-2) 0 to 2 feet x x x x
SB-60 (2-4) 2 to 4 feet x x x x

Notes:

* The first soil sample will be collected from the 0 to 2-foot depth interval. 

The second soil sample will be collected from the 2 to 4-foot depth interval. 

Soil Sample AnalysisSample 

Cell/Designation

Proposed 

Sampling Depths
Sample Designation

D5

SB-60*

SB-58*

SB-59*

C5

B5

Bulkhead EI_sample_location_table_rev.xls
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